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JiLe 18?

With luck the printing of this issue will co-incide
with Easter, and so | wish everyone a Happy, Peaceful, Safe
Easter, and hope that the holidays provide everyone with a
pleasant break from the hustle and bustle of our daily routine.

This issue is already looking interesting with
contributions from the West, Lander, Saywell and Sargent
families. Marjorie has also done a lot of work both research
and writing and organising the Morpeth/Maitland trip.

Our next meeting will be
held at the Archives on:

Saturday: 2nd May

At: 1 p.m.

At this meeting we are lucky to have a guest
speaker who can be of great help to all members who are
writing or compiling their family history. So often I hear
wails of dispair: "l have the information but 1 don’t know
how to put it together™, or ™I"m good at the research work
but not the composition™. well - now"s your chancel
Laurel Richardson, of St, Peter"s Parish, Cook"s River,
together with Rev. Tom Halls (WEST FAMILY) will conduct a
workshop on writing and publishing yoiir histories. They
are both members of their Parish History Committee which
is publishing a history of St. Peter®"s Church for the Bi-
Centennial, St, Peter"s was founded in 1858, and was the
first chiirch in Australia built by free men. They have a
lot of help to give us all, so 1 look forward to seeing
many folk attending.



We intend at this meeting to stay within the
bo\mds of an agenda - hopefully to fit as much as possible
into the day*

Opening
15 minutes Minutes & Brief Business Arising
Correspondence

Financial Report

15 minutes General Business
30 minutes Tom Halls to report to the Meeting
on his recent trip to Calais and
Nottingham.
Remaining Laurel Richardson and Tom Halls
Time Workshop

In order that we use all the available time on
discussion, may 1 suggest that we waive, for this meeting,
the social component at the end of the meeting* I will
ensure that a cup of tea or coffee is available with your
generous offerings on a plate, but this will be served to
you so that you can keep talking. Unless we get cracking
we will not have anything to publish or display next yearl

May 1 further suggest that you bring to this
meeting augi of all your information rather than all your
material™* This list should include any items you feel could

be displayed* This way we will get a better idea of what
we need.

This means you have some homework to do -
thinking of what you would like to see A.S.L.C, doing in

EXECUTIVE MEETINGi 12 NOO”™ PLEASE
%



Ulorpetf) anb beponb —

As Satjrda™”, L.ith liarch, drew close and the
num*bers for our trip to Morpeth ard Uast
Maitland fell, my heart became heaviero And
1 wondered if 1 shonld cancel it altogether*
But —— - there were still a few/.._._.

Saturday dawned overcast — but fine. And
5«45Am is, to me anjTray, the middle of the night — and my
cat agrees with that tool

7<30am, and 1 was due at Mastwood, for, as
otlierwise 1 would have been travelling alone, 1 \W."&s going
with Elizabeth Bolton and her sister, B;;rh.:zra Kendrick,
On our way via Boyalston, Cooranhong, Maitland, to icet uir
guide, Harry Boyle, at the Morpeth Hallway Station at Ham.

Morpeth . . . . Railway/ . . . . Station? Yepl
But it is no longer Railway — which has gone. The building
is now the Main Roads Department, Still, a railway station

building always looks like a railv/ac® station, and we did
find it, as did the rest of our party of 11 plus Keorry.

u(."ith Harry as our pilot we first drove down to
the river, where once stood the 800 yard long wharf, -where
our great-grandparents came ashore, to climb up the steep
embankment stairs (still to be seen) to the road high above*
The stone of the whexf is now buried beneath the silt of a
century and a half of floods; the remains can only be seen

here and there. Some of the blame for this silting must
surely rest at the feet of the early settlers who cleared
t™ land so -well of the trees — cedar trees, Lieut -nant

Close, who cane here in 1221, said the trees were so thick
the sun could not get t>irough to the ground |l

From the river e drovc bac> up to the Campbell”s
Store, built about 1858. This has been restored and now
houses a number of craft shops, etc. It also had an
interesting display of old photographs of Morpeth and its
identities of the past. Then a leisurely®” stroll along the
stre. t, -.-ilst Harry identifi-"d the various buildings which
*would have been familiar in the IB5C"s, and sites now
occupied by more modern structures.



Then, up the T"letford Road hill to St, Janes
Anglican Chut"ch, celehrating its Sesqui-Centenar:" this
ye."ifo  This chiu"ch was built in 1357 by the eexly settler
in this area, Lieutenant 3.C. Close, as a thuinkful fulfilment
of a promise he made to God for his miraculous presv~rvation
in a honbiixdnent diu:"ir.g the Tap6leonic "./ars, \wvhen his two
companions were killed and he hrj?dly touched. It Was
built of local s;indstone, and has been enlarged since 1057,

Lunchtime, so wo drove back to the Park for our
picnic, pausing en route to see t fine Roman Catholic
Church buildings,

Gn our way from Morpeth to 3ast Maitland we drove
thrci~h the grounds of Closebourne House (lovely old Georgian
sti*le) built in 1026, and for many years rov. the Anglican
Conference Centre.

A word about the Morpeth V/harf, This very long
structure formed the river port for the tremendous area
clear through into what is now Queensland, and not merely
the Hunter River Valley district. As the railway, and the
roads, spread northwards, so came the gradual decline of
the importance of the w/harf and tlie tov.n.

At the top of the steps from the wharf stood an
Inn, Viere, no doubt, our ancestors partook of some refresh-
ments, and learned the route to 3ast Maitland where their
accommodation would be, and over "which they would have to
walk carrying All their possessions, (About 5 miles,
perhaps, over the hills_j

A bit further toda;" as we followed K-.rry, to oust

first stop — the Trade .j-ms Hotel, built about 1356. It is
a sandstone building, today a private hone. There shoTild
be a number of photos — - all our c.-yreras seemed to be

clicking busily.

The Trade Arms Hotel would have been a place deciT
to our g grandparents hearts. Between Morpeth and the"arras
they had been drenched in a thunoerstorm. T"c -"ftrons,
their hearts touched b.- this woe-begonc group of about 106,
took up a quick “whip-round® to buy a quantitp® of bread”
cneese and ale for our Lacemakers.



In the same block (entrance in the street behind)
is the Maitland Gaol, designed in 1844 to replace an earlier

struct®orc. Part of it is used as a Museum and shop to sell
articles made by the present inmates of this maximxim security
prison, ® 3 ent an interesting and enjoyable time in the

museum befoj-e driving on to the site of the Immigrants
Barracks (now gone) where many of our folk were to be
accommodated, wither in the Barracks, or — the overflow —
in tents, Th single women and the sick were taken to
Caroline Chisholm®"s cotta{;e. It was built in 1840 of
brick and stone. It Is now a private home, V.Qiirhy stands
the home boxer Les Darcy built for his parents.

By now it was after 3 pm, and with a 3 to 3" ho\JX
return trip ahead of us, wo reluctantly took our farewell of
Harry, Ve all were delighted £ind very apijreci® tivc of
Harrj™-"s guided tour and of his great and detailed knowledge
of our lacemakers and the area, which he so generously shared
with us. Thank you, Harry, from us all.

FronA wo JOO loeniSiy™



AUSTRALIINLJ  KHLLS

Betsy, so baptised on 17th October, 1824, in the
p -rish of Radford, county of Wottingham, was the eldest
child of "W/illian and Ester Sarjent. V/illiam was a fravie
work-knitter, who

Robert John Harrison, a laceinaker, was the son of
Thomas and Maria Harrison, also lacemakers, who had lived
in Calais for many years, Robert, a”ed 25 on arrival in
Australia, his brother Alfred and his sister Mary Ann were
born in Calais* The family then apparently moved back to
Nottinghamshire, where Emily and George were born at Hyson
Green, after which they returned to Donai, France, where
Thomas was bom*

Mother, Maria Harrison, was the daughter of Kary
(dec*d) and Robert Stubbs, who was still living in Calais*

Betsy and the Harrison family came on the “Fairlie*;
Betsy"s family followed on the *Agincoiirt™ Two months
later, on 7th December, 1848, Betsy and Robert John were
married, with the consent of friends, and in the presence
of her sister Mary Ann, and Robert"s brother Alfred, in
the parish church at Kelso*

The young couple settled near 0®Connell Plains,

v/here Robert was employed on the property "Milton", As

their family grew to 8 children, they acquired "Y/illow

Glen Inn", at Tindale"s Hollow* This Betsy ran with the

help of her children, who were:
Emily (b* 21,2.1851); Flora (b* 6.9*1853);
Robert John (b.22.11*1854;; Esther (b*2,10*1856);
William Thomas (b,25.12*1859)» Sarah Ann (b*23*8*"61)
Ann Maria (b«16*12*1862; & Caroline Trueman (b*18«7«>
(b*18*7*1865)0 Caroline was my dear Grandma*

Tragically Betsy died on 22nd December, 1869,
aged about ”5» and was buried in a bush grave on Christmas
Eve, She left a very young family to fend for themselves,
as Robert John was a broken-hearted man, * _ . * * But
that is another story.

JHATT RIGHT.






FAMILY OF JOHN ARMSTRONG AND FRANCES AGINCOURT WEST

NAME

Florence

George Patrick

Florence Ann

Emma

Lucy Jane

Lily Naomi
(Writer’s
grandmother)

John Henry

Thomas West

Mary Elizabeth

Charles Walter

BIRTH
Trunkey.
Trunkey,

10 April, 1872.
Essington,

11July, 1874.

Essington,

24 December, 1876.

Essington,

24 December, 1878.

Essington,
23 April, 1881.

Essington,

29 December, 1883.

Essington,
5 July, 1886.

Essington,
27 January, 1889.

Essington,
3 July, 1891.

MARRIAGE

May Spray,
17 March, 1917
Rockley.

Oswald Thomas
Linnane.

William Cash.

Frank Price.

Thomas Mitchell,
1January, 1906
Essington.

Margaret Emily
Jones,30 October,
1910.

Philip Foran,
10 January, 1910
Sydney.

Frances Gregory,
15 April, 1916/
Alice Gray,

25 June, 1924.

DEATH

Essington,
28 May, 1948.

Bathurst,
14 December, 1932.

Bathurst,
31 August, 191 7.

Goulburn,
20 February, 1949.

Wollongong,
25 May, 1937.

Perthville,
8 March, 1925.

Yerranderie,

9 December, 1909.

(Accidentally
burned).

Gosford,
12 Sept., 1948



FRANCES AG6INCOURT WEST

It is arguable that Frances Agincourt West was conceived on French
soil at the beginning of 1848. One record links her mother's family,a
Nottingham laceweaver, Thomas Shepherd and his wife with Valenciennes,
France. Although Frances' parents.Robert McMurray West (of Deal) and Ann
Shepherd (of Stappleford, Nottinghamshire)™jwere married at Deal in Kent,

England on 2 5 December, id*O and both their fathers' occupations are
recorded there as "publican",Ann West's father's occupation is recorded on her
death certificate issued at Bathurst in 1874 as "laceweaver". It is possible
that Ann West and her husband Robert,whose occupation on their wedding
certificate (1840) is given as "publican",but on Frances' death certificate
(1916) as "shepherd",may have returned to France sometime between 1840 and
1848 involving themselves once again in the traditional trade of her father,
perhaps at Valenciennes. The February, 1987 issue of 'Tulle' indicates that
their first child,Robert was born in Calais,France. The Nottingham Review of
12 May, 1848 told of laceweavers coming out of inland France and one French
account(2) records that 455 English left Calais for England between 27 April

and 6 June, 1848 (6 days before the "Agincourt" sailed). It remains to be
discovered whether Frances West's family was part of this migration. Her
names appear to be the combination of the places of her conception and her
birth: France in the first instance and the barque 'Agincourt' subsequently.

Frances Agincourt West travelled further in the first ten months after her
conception than she did in the rest of the 67 years of her life. She was one of
three baby girls born on the Duncan Dunbar barque 'Agincourt' which was
carrying migrants and merchandise from Britain to Australia. Arriving in the
world as she did on 2 2 September, 1848 Frances missed out on being born on
Australian soil by 14 days. After two more weeks at sea with her parents,
Robert McMurray and Ann West and her three year old brother,Robert,not to
mention the other 260(3j migrants and Captain Thomas Scott and his crew,she

disembarked at Port Jackson either on the day of the ship's arrival,6 October,
1848,or the day following. The next few days were spent in the Immigration

Barracks,better known to us as Old Government House,the nearest any of her

family have come to vice-regal accommodation.

One wonders which was worse for baby Frances; being tossed around in her
unborn state from June until September,or those first two weeks after birth
still at sea; the time in Old Government House,or the 8 days spent on bullock
drays hired by the government for the journey across the sandstone barrier of
the Blue Mountains to Bathurst. If she could survive all of that she could
survive anything! The Sydney Morning Herald recorded 121 ‘Agincourt’
immigrants leaving Sydney for Bathurst™y The Bathurst Advocate noted 114

immigrants as having arrived in Bathurst™j Even allowing for the Croft family

of three who dropped out along the way to allow Mrs. Croft's confinement for
the birth of a son,William,that leaves four people unaccounted for At least the
Wests made it.



Five other children were born in Australia to Robert and Ann West:
William.Jane Ann,Emma,Valentina Friend and Elizabeth,who married
James Hewitt. William became lost in the bush for 7 days when he was 7 years
old. Although he survived physically the experience so affected his emotional
stability that he had to be cared for for the rest of his life. Irene Mayer
whose daughter is Minyon Agincourt Mayer,and Kitty Foran daughters of
William West's neice Mary Elizabeth Foran (nee Armstrong) can remember
playing with William a gentle,child-like old man,when they were children.

Frances West was baptised at Bathurst on 16December, 1879 by the
Reverend Thomas 5harpe,the first man ordained priest by Bishop Broughton,
when Broughton was bishop of all Australia®j.At that time Frances' father

Robert was a shepherd at Grosvenor Farm,Roxburgh Shire.

On 9 August, f869 Frances West became the third wife of John
Armstrong a widowed gold miner of Spring Creek at Davie’s Creek,near
Swallow's Nest, New South Wales (the bride's usual place of residence).The
ceremony was conducted by the Reverend William Fell, a Wesleyan Methodist
Minister who received consents from Robert McMurray West and Ann West;
Frances "being under the age of twenty one years". The witnesses were Robert
West and one Ellen Jones,who made "her mark".

John,an overseer on Major Lockyer's farm,was the first son of Irish
convicts,Charles Armstrong,who arrived in the colony on the ship "Ajmorah '
on 2 2 December, t82C\j* and Naomi Wright,who arrived on the ship 'Harmony'

on 2 7 September, t827y Charles (by then emancipated) and Naomi were

married with the approval of Governor Darling at St. John’s, Parramatta on
26 August, 1828 by the Reverend John Vincent,one of the six chaplains who
arrived in the colony while Thomas Hobbes Scott was Archdeacon of all
Australia within the Diocese of Calcutta. Mr. Vincent was just three years
older than the groom and newly arrived from England. It may have been his
first wedding in the colony.”gj

Though Frances West was under age,John Armstrong had by the time of
their marriage reached the age of 40,havlng been born on fSJuly, 829 near
Taralga. He was baptised on 2 January, f8Jf the birthday of both the writer,a
great-great- grandson,and a great-great-great-granddaughter,5usan
Mitchell, whose grandfather George Mitchell and Aunt Judith Frances
Mitchell are members of the Australian Society of Lacemakers of Calais. John
was baptised by the Reverend Thomas Hassall.who though English-born was the
first young man to grow up in New South Wales and seek ordination. In 1813,at
the age of 19 Hassall commenced in his own home the first Sunday School in
New South Wales. At the time of John Armstrong’s baptism in 1831,Hassall
described his Parish as "Australia beyond Liverpool"Qj.



Only two of the ten children of John Armstrong and Frances West reached three
score years and ten. John died of "pneumonia” at Essington on f5 November, /7907/i
the age of 78. Frances died of "heart failure due to natural causes" after 67 years
in the colonies at Essington on 2 0 December, /P/a’They are both buried at Oberon.
Frances left as she had come with the world around her in turmoil,and France at
the centre of the storm.

Frances' mother,Ann West also died of ‘“hatural causes" at the age of 54 years
after 26 years in the colonies on 16 June, j67”. At Chain of Ponds near Bathurst on
19November, /676Robert McMurray West at the age of 62 took his own life while
depressed over the loss of his wife. Robert and A»”™n are buried at "Charlton" a
property near Bathurst. Ann West the lacemaker's daughter from Nottingham has

the only readable gravestone of the three remaining in the ruined cemetery.
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DORMER

George Dormer, who first set up a smithy in Albert Place in
1868, and later moved to MclGnlay Street, was the son of
a blacksmith, his father having kept a smithy on his farm
at Bald Hills.

The Dormers were originally a titled Irish family, who
emigrated to France, where they became owners of a lace
business in Lille. They prospered there until in 1848,
rather than be forced to serve in the French Army, the story
is told, George Dormer and his wife Judith, with children,
llelene. Julienne, George and Esther, left the country, and
came in the ship Harpley to South Australia.

George Dormer senior worked for a time at the Alberton
Smelting Wbrks (treating copper from Burra) while his ten
year old son worked as a shepherd for Lachlan McBean, on
the banks of the Tbrrens. At night he camped the sheep at
the head of a quarry where now Parliament House and the
Railway Station stand.

After a trip to the goldfields the whole family mo\ed to
the south, taidng up land at Bald Hills. In 1867 George
Dormer died, aged sixty-nine. His widow moved back to
Adelaide with one of her daughters, and George junu i
began a business in Victor Harbor, which he ran for forr.
live years. His sister Helene, and her husband Joshua
Gibson, had been running a butchering business in the
town for a few years prior to his moving to the town.

From Albert Place. George Dormer moved his smithy to
McKinlay Street, about the time that William Skinner sold
his Stuart Street smithy to Thomas Henly. Mr Dormer's
official title was a wheelwright, and he manufactured many
cart wheels. First the wooden wheel hub was made, and
spokes fitted, then wood was 'steamed' to make the
curved rim. To this had to be fitted the metal outer rim, and
finally the wheel was ‘'rubbered’ and finished off by being
brightly painted.

With the expanding shipping trade of the 1870s, many
contracts were to be had from ships calling at the port.
George Dormer also manufactured many of the old
wrought iron grave surrounds still to be seen in the local
cemetery. Iron fittings and plumbing were made, and
horses shoed.

anb "ealing-tnax

Hannah and George Dormer

In 1876, aged thirty-eight, George Michael L
married Hannah, the widow of Charles Chambm
Hannah Dormer had been originally a Miss Bowfei
had first married Robert Palmer in 1862, and twod,
were born-Hyphena and William, when she \«is
widow. Her second husband, Charles Chambers c
1872 leaving her with three more children, Eva, H
and Charles. Life was very hard for most widows,
cially those with children.

George and Hannah Dormer raised five childrenc
own in their little house in McKinlay Street; Victor, H
Lilian, Olive and Frederick. None of the children aa
the town, but Mr Dormer continued to run his smiit.
1913, when he was seventy-five. Mrs Dormer di
1921, and George Dormer went to the city just ovtr
later, dying there in 1924.



ON CONTRIBUXING__ X Q TVLLE.

Write soMething for Tulle! You ha”e to be
joking! He? What do I ha”e to say that would be
ewen renotely interesting to other nenbers of The
Australian Society of the Lacenakers of Calais?

Willian Hakepegce Thackeray once wrote
that "there are a thousand thoughts lying within a
nan that he does not know until he takes up the pen
to write"”. However, Oliver Goldsnith, who proceeded
Thackeray by about one hundred years wrote, 'as
writers have becone wore nunerous, it is natural
for readers to becone nore indolent™. It is
unfortunate but nost Tulle readers opt for indolent
readership rather than an active authorship.

Probably the reason why we would rather
read than write is given by Alexander Pope in his
Essay on Criticisn. "True ease in writing cones
fron art, not chance". Sanuel Johnson, however,
believed that writing wasn’t neant to be easy. He
wrote "what is written without effort is, in
general, read without pleasure".

Walter Bagehot suggested that the wrong
people take to writings 'the reason why so few
books are written is that so few people who write
know anything".

Perhaps all the above proves is that it is
easier to be critical than it is to be creative. (A
critic iIs a nan who knows the way but can’t drive
the carl. However, the Editor of Tulle would like
your contributions - on any subject at all. If you
have feared contributing in the past because you
have feared criticisn, just renenberi

When you hark to the voice of the Knocker,
As you listen to his banner fall,

Renenber the fact, that the knocking act
Requires no brain at all.

Richard Lander
7/2/B7.
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RUDDINGTQN FRAMEWORK KNITTERS” HUSETO

Mi  INTRODUCTION TO THE COMPLEX:

* Remember first, that Ruddington was a village
of less than 700 population before the handframe
knitters changed it from an agricultural to an
industrial community.

* William Lee, of Calverton, iiottinghamshire,
invented the handframe in 1589« Initially re-
jected in this country, it eventually became the
staple industry of the county of its birth;
textiles, and lace (made by adaptations to the
original stocking frame) remain today our major
industries.

* The earliest indications of handframe knitting
in Ruddington are found in the Parish Registers of
the later 1600s. It appears to be the Parliamentary
Enclosure here in 1767 which opened the flood gates
to the industrial workers. An "Open® village, with
land available for new housing - a comparatively nrevi
Turnpike Road easing transport problems - well
situated between the established handframe knitting
centres of Nottingham, Derby, Loughborough and
Leicester - and close to the Leicestershire Wolds
and the Sherwood Forest for plentiful supplies of
wool - Ruddington®s industrial foundations were being
laid.

* This museum complex is part of a street created

from farmland in the 1820s. It then comprised:

... a "yard" (or square) of cottages & outhouses

... a Primitive Methodist Chapel (which with the
V/esley Methodist and Baptist Chapels pro-
vided for the spiritual needs of the knitters)

... a pair of workers™ cottages at the street end

... our own, now unique, complex of working and
living accommodation on one site.

* With this brief background we can now look in

detail at the 1829 group of workshops and cottages
owned, and being restored by, The Trust.



THE

THE

The tour of the KNITTERS®™ HUSSUH starts in

SMALL FRAI " iESKOP on Right.

where in the“ground floor Lecture Hall visitors
can "watch a slide-tape sequence which gives the
broad background story of handframe knitting with
particular reference to the East Midlands area
(about 20 minutes).

Upstairs is an exhibition tracing the development
of the handframe from William Lee"s invention to
the latest computer method of production.

Dovmstairs again and across the garden, enter
LARGE FRAI-1ESHOP - on Left.

The whole of the upstairs floor is full of hand-
frames, an increasing number of them in working
condition. Here one can see the cramped conditions
in which the 19th century framework knitters worked
- smell the smell of an authentic machine shop -

and hear the ssssswish-clack-clack ssssswish-clack-
clack of the handframes as they are being operated.

Cn the ground floor are two rooms divided by the
entrance passage. To the right, on entering, is

the workshop, with facilities for repairs, making

new needle leads and otheroperations essential to

tile maintenance of machinery. The room also con-
tains several circular sock machiner which are
operated by classes of Learner Knitters, and examples
of developments in the circular type of machine -

a Stibbe Maxim, Komet, etc., all of which have now
been out into working order.

To the left is another exhibition room - the

LOCAL ROOM - which sets out the story of handframe
knitting in Ruddington, illustrating the impact of
tne late 18th and the 19th century framework
knitters on this small agricultural community, and
showing the contribution made to Ruddington®s
industrial development by specific families.



THE OUTHOUSI:S:

At the opposite end of the rectang-ular site from
the cottaiies, a row of outhouses was erected.
These consisted of a store, a coal shed, a pig sty,
two closets, a urinal for the workmen (the system
of v/orkinp this is both fascinating and, it is
believed, unique), and an ash midden.

THE COIlulUHAI ;/A3H-KOuSE ic QVEM,;

Heturninr down the garden path towards the
cottages, turn left at the end of the s-nall
frameshon. lhe door here leads to a small room
wviich still boasts a cooper for washuays, and
soace for a range to be fitted (wre.n one can be
obtained) to restore this room to its original
dual ouroose of v/ashing and cooking for the
families livin,e in the cottage block. small
area behind the doer has been equipped v;ith
modern facilities to enable refreshments to be
served to visitors.

PINALLY TILE GOITAGEd:

The Wi:ole comnlex was curpose-bui 10 in 1d28, with
workin™ ano livino accommodation all oii one site.
This 1is why the oottares are so important. The
block originally comprised four cottages - two
central back-to-back cottages with one “through®
cottage on either side. O.re family lived in

one of these cottacres for three generations - from
1829 to 1929i anu research has produced an inter-
esting story. Other occupants have been, and
still are bein.g traced, and one back-to-back
cottage has been restored as a framework knitters”
home circa 1850, which one through cottage shows
a hosier™s home circa 1900. The remaining “one
and a half cottages have been modernised inside
for use as tenanted accommodation.

*-) (****’**********#**



More details about the buildings, the industry,
the neople -their working lives and their home
lives - are told to visitors on conducted tours;
additional publications are in hand for sale
with other items in a room iIn the cottage block
which we plan to restore as the hosier®s yarn
store-cum-office, A small shop area is part of
our development programme.

Arrangements to visit should be made in advance
through - N H ™ jJ#OPTO/N/

OPEN tuesday and thursday 10am-~4pm
INDIVIDUALS/PARTIES WELCOMED

APRIL OCTOBER
~i£c> OoOP6Ki 6V

There is a nominal admission charge, as also for
coffee, etc.

Ring Road A
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